
 
 
 

 
 

RC130318agn  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
 

FLORIDA 
 
 
MEMORANDUM TO: 
 
The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
Council Members: 
 
The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council on Monday, March 18, 2013, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers, 
11 North Third Street, Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 
 
Opening Ceremonies: Invocation 
 Salute to the Flag 
Roll Call 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
    

 Council Workshop held February 25, 2013 
 Regular City Council Briefing held March 4, 2013 
 Regular City Council Meeting held March 4, 2013 
 New Council Orientation on March 6, 2013 
 Council Workshop held March 6, 2013 
 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
3. COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS: 
 
4. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL: 

 
Proclamation of Wednesday, April 17, 2013, as Military Family and Community Covenant 
Day 
 

5. CITY CLERK:   
 
6. CITY MANAGER: 

 
(a) Monthly Financial Reports – Month of February 2013 
 
(b) Authorize the City Manager to Designate Locations Throughout the City for Parking 

Licensed Golf Carts and Low Speed Vehicles. 
 
(c) Authorize the Downtown Parking Program. 



Memorandum, Mayor and City Council  
City Council Agenda for March 18, 2013 
 

 
RC 130318agn   Page 2 of 2  

(d) Approve a Draw for SWAT Team Entry Vests (Four Vests) From the Local Law 
Enforcement Trust Fund. 

 
(e) Allocate $5,000 for Overtime Personnel to Cover the Fire Marshal’s Position. 
 
(f) Approval for Crazy Fish Jacksonville Beach, Inc., to Construct Two (2) Parking Lots 

Designated for Restaurant Customers, Change the Name of the Business From Crazy 
Fish Jacksonville Beach, Inc., to Old Florida Fish Camp and Seafood Shack, Inc., and 
Extend the Lease for Five (5) Years.  

 
7. RESOLUTIONS: 

 
8. ORDINANCES: 

 
(a) ORDINANCE NO. 2013-8025 – First Reading 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION 
AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REPEALING SECTION 34-467 FLOOD 
HAZARD AREA IN ITS ENTIRETY AND BY ADOPTING  A NEW SECTION 34-
347 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS; ADOPTING FLOOD 
HAZARD MAPS, DESIGNATING A FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR, 
ADOPTING PROCEDURES AND CRITERIA FOR DEVELOPMENT IN FLOOD 
HAZARD AREAS, ADOPTING LOCAL ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENTS TO 
THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY, 
REPEALER, AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 /s/George D. Forbes   
 CITY MANAGER 

 
GDF: cmm 
03/11/14  
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at any 
meeting, such person may need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, such person may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  
 
The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms are available at the entrance 
of the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 
(904) 247-6299, Ext 10, no later than 12:00 PM, Friday, March 15, 2013. 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
Downtown Paid Parking 

Monday, February 25, 2013 – 6:30 PM 
Community Center 

WS 130225 min Page 1 of 2 

 
Mayor Charlie Latham called the workshop to order at 6:30 PM. 
 
The following City Council members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham   Steve Hartkemeyer      
Mayor Pro-Tem Tom Taylor  Phil Vogelsang 
Keith Doherty    Jeanell Wilson 
 
Also present were City Manager George Forbes and Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley 
 
Purpose of Workshop 
 
The purpose of the workshop is to discuss Downtown parking objectives and proposed solutions. 
 
Discussion 
 
Mayor Latham acknowledged that many in the audience were interested in the low speed vehicle 
issue.  He stated that the workshop would begin by going over the memo provided to the Council by 
the City Manager regarding Downtown parking (attached).  Mayor Latham went through the 
objectives.  Mayor Latham asked if everyone agreed on the objectives. 
 
Keith Doherty stated that paid parking needs to be modified.  Phil Vogelsang agreed.  Tom Taylor 
stated that some of the objectives have worked.  Mr. Doherty acknowledged that the program has 
curtailed antisocial activities in the paid lots, but it hasn’t solved the issue, only moving the problem.  
Jeanell Wilson stated it is hard to measure the outcome without guidelines.  Mr. Doherty stated that 
paid parking in the winter is redundant.   
 
Phil Vogelsang went over his parking proposal handout (attached).  He proposed a barcode system 
where people would pay to have free access into lots.  Enforcement officers can easily see the 
barcode.  Mr. Vogelsang stated that businesses could use a token or bill for customers to validate 
their parking.  Lots would have gates with payment machines.  Mayor Latham asked if a cost 
analysis had been done.  Mr. Vogelsang answered no.  Councilmembers discussed Mr. Vogelsang’s 
proposal.  Mr. Vogelsang stated that the City of Cincinnati uses a similar type of system.  Jeanell 
Wilson stated that the original purpose of the program was to have a police presence.  Tom Taylor 
stated that 14% of the time fees are collected and 86% of the time they are not collected.  Mr. Taylor 
agreed with Ms. Wilson and liked having a police presence.  Mr. Taylor stated that they needed to 
see a cost analysis.  Mayor Latham stated that the proposal is a good start. 
 
Keith Doherty stated that options 1 (current paid parking) and 2 (pay and display machine) were not 
feasible.  He said option 3 (gated parking with a pay booth) and 4 (discontinue paid parking) were 
feasible and option 3 was the best option.  Mr. Doherty reviewed a synopsis of his thoughts and ideas 
for parking in the downtown area (attached). 
 
Council had a discussion of ideas.  Jeanell Wilson stated the need to have a meeting for discussion 
and to look at the costs.   



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
held on Wednesday February 25, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 
 

WS 130225 min   Page 2 of 2 

 
Mayor Latham stated that the current parking program is not working.  He agreed with Ms. Wilson 
that they need to look at the costs.  Mayor Latham asked if the Council wanted to keep paid parking.  
Steve Hartkemeyer stated that he likes manned booths.  He said a manned booth can easily convert to 
an automated system.  Mr. Doherty and Mr. Vogelsang believe that residents in the Beaches Energy 
service area and downtown businesses should be able to park for free.  Council also wanted to utilize 
the paid parking only during peak periods. 
 
Mr. Forbes stated that if the City Council wishes to let residents and business customers park for free, 
the Council should consider option 4, discontinue paid parking.  There was discussion on option 4 
and the consensus of the City Council was for the City Manager to place on the March 18, 2013, City 
Council meeting: 
 

1. A motion to discontinue paid parking until the options presented by Councilmember 
Vogelsang and Doherty could be thoroughly reviewed and the future direction of paid 
parking decided. 

2. A plan to provide security in the parking lots downtown without paid parking, the costs, and 
how security would be funded. 

3. A proposed schedule that would discontinue paid parking during the winter and non-peak 
months. 

 
Mayor Latham opened up the workshop briefly to comments from the audience.   
 
Low Speed Vehicle Parking 
 
Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley presented a PowerPoint showing an idea to add low speed vehicle 
(LSV) parking and not take away any existing parking.  Mayor Latham opened the workshop to 
comments from the audience regarding LSV parking.  Comments ranged from commending the idea 
for adding LSV parking spaces to dissatisfaction that the plan would block a resident’s lake view. 
 
Mayor Latham made brief closing remarks and thank those who attended the workshop. 
 
The workshop was adjourned at 8:10 PM. 
 
 
Submitted by: Sheri Gosselin  
  Assistant to the City Manager  
                                                             
 
   Approved: 

  
 

    

William C. Latham, Mayor 

   
  Date:   March 18, 2013  
 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, March 4, 2013 – 6:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 
11 North 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

CC Briefing min 130304 Page 1 of 2 

 
The Council Briefing began at 6:02 PM. 
 
The following City Council members attended: 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham 
 
Keith Doherty 
Steve Hartkemeyer 
Christine Hoffman 
Tom Taylor 
Phil Vogelsang 
Jeanell Wilson 
 
Also present were City Manager George Forbes, City Department Directors, and Cathy Martinich, City 
Clerk’s Office.   
 
Purpose of the Briefing 
 
The purpose of the Briefing is to update the Councilmembers on projects, recent developments, 
upcoming issues, and review of agenda items. 
 
City Manager 
 
Mr. Forbes announced that the Council Orientation will be held on Wednesday, March 6, 2013 at 3:00 
PM, and there will be a workshop at 6:30 PM, on the issues of vagrants and public safety. 
 
Mr. Forbes said that Beach Boulevard and 1st Street would open on Friday, and the recent rains delayed 
completion. 
 
Mr. Forbes stated he received a call from First Coast News regarding smoking on the beach. It has been 
recently considered by the State Legislature to allow Cities to ban smoking on the beach.  He said there 
is no way to enforce a smoking ban on the beach, and that dogs and people leaving trash around were 
more prominent issues of enforcement. 
 
Mr. Forbes and Chief Frazier said that Fire Marshal Captain Steve Sciotto will be out of his office for 
approximately four weeks.  Mr. Forbes noted that it might be necessary to obtain funds to bring in 
additional Captains to assist with business plan reviews, to avoid delays in the approval process.  
 
Mr. Forbes indicated that “Visit Florida” would be sponsoring a beach soccer tournament, June 22nd and 
23rd.  He mentioned that three summer movies have been chosen and would be shown on the large 
screen as in the past; not on the small screen that was shown during a previous meeting.  There will also 
be two jazz series held at the Seawalk Pavilion this year, under Gary Meadors’s direction. 



Minutes of City Council Briefing     
held on Monday, March 4, 2013 
 
 

 
CC Briefing min 130304   Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Forbes asked Council Members Jeanell Wilson, and Keith Doherty to discuss term limits for 
volunteer board positions.  Ms. Wilson said she would like to collect more information and increase 
advertising to accumulate applications on file.  Mr. Doherty suggested board members participate on a 
four-year term system, the same as Council Members.  He said this process will keep ideas fresh, and 
people interested in the opportunity to volunteer.  Mr. Forbes explained that recent interviews revealed 
impressive, qualified candidates for Council Members to consider for board positions. 
 
Council Member Phil Vogelsang gave a presentation (on file) of his research into Parking Lot Revenue 
Generation by adding Pay Stations to Municipal Parking lots.  Mr. Vogelsang asked that his outline from 
the February 25, 2013 Council Workshop meeting be attached to this evenings’ presentation, for the 
record (on file).  He discussed details of cash and credit card payments, Barcodes/Sun Pass, holographic 
stickers, security, and a merchant validating option. 
 
The workshop adjourned at 6:47 PM. 
 
Submitted by:  Cathy M. Martinich  
   City Clerk’s Office  
 
                                                              Approved: 

  
 

    

William Charles Latham, Mayor 

   
  Date:   March 18, 2013   

       



 

RC 130304min  Page 1 of 9 

Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 

held Monday, March 4, 2013, at 7:00 P.M.  

in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida.  
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Mayor Charlie Latham called the meeting to order. 

 

OPENING CEREMONIES: 

 

Invocation was by Council Member Wilson, followed by the Salute to the Flag.   

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

Mayor: Charlie Latham 

 

Council Members: Keith Doherty Steve Hartkemeyer Christine Hoffman 

 Tom Taylor Phil Vogelsang  Jeanell Wilson  

 

Also present was City Manager George Forbes, City Department Directors, and Nancy J. Pyatte, Assistant 

City Clerk. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, and passed, to approve the following minutes, 

as presented: 

 

 Council Orientation held February 6, 2013 

 Council Workshop held February 13, 2013 

 Council Briefing held February 18, 2013 

 Regular Council Meeting held February 18, 2013 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilmember Tom Taylor 

 Mr. Taylor stated he met with the Parks and Recreation staff about the upcoming parade and he was 

very pleased with the plans.  Mr. Taylor suggested a walk through the business district to encourage 

more participation.  The cut-off date to enter a parade float is the end of March for the April 28, 

2013 parade. 

 

Mayor Charlie Latham 

Mayor Latham made the following announcements: 

 

 Council members Wilson, Vogelsang and I were invited to participate in the Governor’s Press 

Conference on February 11th to announce the state’s investment of $78 million to modify the 

interchanges between I-95 and JTB.. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 2 of 9 

 On February 21st several of us (council) had the opportunity to meet the new Duval County School 

Superintendent, Dr. Vitti, at Fletcher High School Media Center.  It’s clear that Dr. Vitti has a great 

vision for our school system. 

 

 A parking workshop was held on February 25th.  This was primarily a meeting for the council to 

discuss options.  We did take several comments from residents at the conclusion of council 

discussions and we should be addressing parking at the next council meeting on March 18th. 

 

 On February 28th we hosted a town hall meeting for State Senator Aaron Bean.  Senator Bean listed 

‘saving the ferry’ and ‘pension reform’ as two of his top concerns. 

 

 This past Sunday, March 3rd, I was invited to speak at the First Christian Church’s fellowship 

breakfast.  I very much appreciated the opportunity to meet with the members of the church to 

discuss the City’s priorities. 

 

 On March 6th at 6:30 PM in the Council Chambers, there will be a workshop to discuss vagrancy 

and crime in the downtown area. 

 

Councilmember Chris Hoffman 
 

 Ms. Hoffman expressed her interest to participate and be involved in the planning for the parade. 

 

Councilmember Jeanell Wilson 
 

 Asked if a report on the Donna 26.2 Run was available.  Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley advised 

that he did not have an official report; however, there were very few complaints during the event. 
 

Councilmember Phil Vogelsang 
 

 Mr. Vogelsang inquired about the format for the workshop on March 6, 2013.  It was confirmed 

that representatives from Sulzbacher Center, Mission House, and Chamber of Commerce have been 

informed and invited to attend.  This will be an information gathering session to identify problems 

and work on solutions. 

 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

 

Speakers:  

 

 Bill Stevens, 733 2nd Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Stevens commended the Council for being proactive in building community.  He spoke about 

the downtown businesses offering to help with funding off-duty police officers to help with the 

prevention of problems. 

 

 Lance Folsom, 1022 North 23rd Street, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Folsom addressed the Council about item 6a of the agenda, 4th of July Special Event. He 

expressed his concerns about keeping downtown orderly and safe and not have fireworks.  He liked 

the idea of event with patriotic music.  

 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 3 of 9 

 Maria C. Cummins, 3704 Duval Drive, Jacksonville Beach 

Ms. Cummins spoke about low speed vehicles (LSVs) and stated that she is in favor of the reserved 

parking proposal.   

 

 Clark Howard, 3629 Ocean Drive South, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Howard commended the Council and the City staff for their responsiveness to the parking 

issues and stated they are doing a great job. He stated he continues to see improvements in the 

community. 

 

 Gerry Williamson, 3804 Duval Drive, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Williamson addressed the Council about LSVs and parking of these should be in existing 

parking spaces. He also talked about the people who won’t use the paid parking and go into the 

neighborhoods and take up spaces from residents. 

 

 Lee Ligo, 3938 Duval Drive, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Ligo commended the Council and City staff for the workshops on LSVs and parking plans.  He 

stated he thought it was positive for people both west and east of 3rd Street – a ‘win-win’. 

 

 Thad Mosely, 3701 Duval Drive, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Mosely addressed the Council about LSVs and stated that parking of these should not be in 

right-of-ways or at residential street-ends.  He stated there should be a list provided to LSV 

operators of parking areas. 

 

 Bert Bost, 495 34th Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Bost addressed the Council about LSVs stating that they are here to stay – more people are 

using them and they are street legal. Mr. Bost presented 4 options for consideration and distributed 

copies to the Mayor and Council, copy on record. 

 

 John Galarneau, 2002 Grove Street, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Galarneau addressed the Council about parking workshops and his involvement with them 

since 2010. He stated he is not in favor of paid parking but thought it was premature to do away 

with the current parking system until there is a long term solution. 

 

 Sonny Smith, 468 32nd Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Smith addressed the Council about LSVs and parking, stating that he has been using one for 

about 4 years to take his family to the beach.  He said there is a problem with people that come to 

the beach using JTB and going down 37th Avenue South for parking and beach access. 

 

 Chad Starkey, 3656 Isabella Blvd., Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Starkey addressed the Council about LSVs stating that he was not sure of a solution and that it 

could get worse before it gets better.  Mr. Starkey stated it’s not always safe crossing 3rd Street no 

matter what you are on or in - a bicycle, a car, or an LSV.  People just want to get their families to 

the beach safely. 

 

 Mike Clements, 3390 Isabella Blvd., Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Clements addressed the Council about LSVs and getting his family safely across 3rd Street. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 4 of 9 

 

 JoDee Evans, 63 South 37th Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 

Ms. Evans addressed the Council about LSVs and parking.  She stated that the beach is lacking in 

parking all over and she didn’t want the beach access locations or yards torn up.   

 

 Jon Cummins, 3704 Duval Drive, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Cummins addressed the Council about LSVs and parking, stating the beach access locations are 

for pedestrians, not vehicles. 

 

Courtesy of the floor concluded at 7:48 PM. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

 

CITY CLERK  
 

CITY CLERK:   
 

Appointment of a Second Alternate Member to the Planning Commission to Complete an 

Unexpired Term. 

 

Motion:   It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to appoint a second alternate 

member to the Planning Commission to complete an unexpired term, which will expire on 

January 31, 2015. 

 

Mr. Hartkemeyer made a motion to nominate Rick Knight for the second alternate member.  Mr. 

Doherty seconded the motion. 

 

Discussion ensued about the recent interviews of seven board applicants conducted February 11, 

2013.  Rick Knight and Georgette Dumont expressed interest in the Planning Commission. 

 

Ms. Wilson stated that Rick Knight would be a great candidate; however, this could be an 

opportunity to get someone new involved with the City. 

 

Mr. Doherty made a motion to nominate Georgette Dumont for the second alternate member.  Mr. 

Vogelsang seconded the motion. 

 

Mayor Latham called for a roll call vote, asking the Council to state the name of the candidate of 

their choice. 

 

Roll call vote: Dumont: Doherty, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Mayor Latham              

Knight: Hartkemeyer 

 

 Georgette Dumont was appointed as the second alternate member to the Planning Commission. 

 

CITY MANAGER: 
 

(a) Approve a special event for the 4th of July that will be conducted by Jax Beach Festivals, Inc. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 5 of 9 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to Approve Jax Beach 

Festivals, Inc., to produce a 4th of July event as described in a memo from the City 

Manger dated February 25, 2013. 

 

Mr. Forbes stated that Sam Veal has conducted events for over 20 years for the City of 

Jacksonville Beach.  Mr. Veal was contacted by the City and he has submitted a proposal for 

the event per our stipulations, as follows: 

 

1. The event is self-supporting, no City monies. The City is co-sponsoring the event so there 

will be no rental fees. 

2. The Latham Parking lot must remain open during the event. 

3. The event will take place at the Seawalk Pavilion/Latham Plaza. 

4. Mr. Veal must obtain a special events permit from the City and pay the costs for Police, 

garbage collection, etc. 

 

Following are the guidelines for Mr. Veal to produce the event: 

 

1. The event will be 4pm – 9pm, may consist of live music with a patriotic theme, and 4th of 

July historic features such as the recital of the Declaration of Independence. 

2. The event will include the sale of hamburgers, hot dogs, ice cream, beer and soda, at the 

fenced-in Seawalk area east of 1st Street.  

 

Mr. Forbes displayed photos of a previous festival at the Seawalk Pavilion and a fireworks 

display. 

 

Mr. Forbes stated if the Council wants to consider a fireworks display it would cost the City 

$25,000.00, plus the expense of security. The Mayor asked Sam Veal to the podium to address 

the Council. 

 

Mr. Veal, Jax Beach Festivals, Inc., stated that his idea is for our citizens to participate with 

this event by using an on-line marketing campaign called ‘Kickstarter’.  This is a funding 

website where people will have a choice for helping fund the costs of the fireworks display and 

the expense of security and clean-up. 

 

Mr. Veal stated the entertainment will consist of popular and big-band music as well as 

patriotic themed music, and the recitation of the Declaration of Independence by Mayor 

Latham.  Mr. Veal stated that, if Council approves fireworks, he has a $3,500.00 sponsorship 

promised from Metro PCS. 

 

Ms. Wilson stated that she likes the family theme for this event and not having to use City 

funds.  She hopes the on-line funding resource will be successful for the expenses of fireworks 

and security. 

 

Mr. Hartkemeyer had questions about the total cost of the event, fireworks and sponsorship.  

The City Manager responded that Sam Veal will run the special event. The City will run the 

fireworks display, if Council approves.  Mr. Forbes stated that we need to know by March 15, 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 6 of 9 

2013 if there will be fireworks because the City will have to guarantee the $25,000.00 cost of 

the fireworks display, plus the expense of security. 

 

Mr. Veal stated to the Council that there is the option of just having a fireworks display 

without the event.   
 

Mr. Taylor had questions about alcohol at the event.  Mr. Veal said there will be a large tent for all 

food and beverages. There will be beer and wine available per the City’s guidelines and ordinance.  

 

Discussion continued about public safety and Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley came to the podium 

to address the Council.  

 

Chief Dooley stated Mr. Veal does an excellent job working with the City when doing his events. 

Chief Dooley added that it does get complicated and very labor intensive with fireworks because of 

the crowds and traffic.  Also, he stated that residents don’t scale back on fireworks whether the 

City is doing a show or not – the officers collect barrels of fireworks from the neighborhoods. (no 

arrests) 

 

Mayor Latham asked what are the logistics of lane closings to help with the increased traffic.  

Chief Dooley stated there has to be an officer at each intersection.  Even with all available officers 

working, including the added 20-25 JSO officers, we don’t have the manpower to close roads. 

 

Mr. Doherty described the 2011 4
th
 of July event and fireworks as the perfect storm – it was a 

weekend, our City was 1 of only 2 locations in Duval County having a fireworks display.  The 

Jacksonville Landing was the other location.  

 

Discussion continued about other cities having events and the possibility of that lessening the 

crowds, or closing off 1
st
 Street. Chief Dooley stated closing 1

st
 Street would create problems for 

the businesses and the hotels.  As for the other option, the Chief stated that Jacksonville Beach is a 

big draw for lots of different people. 

 

The Mayor asked about utilizing the Citizens On Patrol (COPs) volunteers for help with the 

crowds, parking, and traffic.  Chief Dooley responded that they have about 30 volunteers that the 

department actively uses in traffic control and still it is not enough. 

 

There was more discussion about the increase in bicycle traffic during these events and safety 

problems.   

 

Ms. Hoffman stated there could be a separate meeting about fireworks.  She asked if the Council is 

voting on the special event and fireworks together or separately.  Mr. Forbes responded that it 

would be separately. 

 

Mr. Doherty asked the City Manager if other cities have helped with the costs of the fireworks.   

 

Mr. Forbes responded that sometimes Jacksonville Beach has received funds from the Tourism 

Development Council, Neptune Beach, and Atlantic Beach.  Neither Neptune Beach nor Atlantic 

Beach has funds budgeted this year.  

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 7 of 9 

The motion on the floor is to approve Jax Beach Festivals, Inc., to produce a 4th of July event 

as described in a memo from the City Manager dated February 25, 2013. 
 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and 

Mayor Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Vogelsang, seconded by Mr. Doherty, to approve $25,000.00 

for a Fireworks display, and $2,000.00 for security, with the 4th of July event by Jax Beach 

Festivals, Inc., from the unanticipated expense general fund. 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor                         

Latham; Nays:  Hartkemeyer.  The motion passed by a vote of 6 to 1. 
                 

(b) Authorize the Execution of Closing Documents to Finalize Purchase of Real Property.  (Lot 

22, Block 5, Sea Side Park Subdivision) 

 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the Mayor 

and City Manager to execute the closing documents to finalize, at the agreed purchase price 

and total estimated City closing costs, the City purchase of the real property described as Lot 

22 and closed rights-of-way lying northerly and easterly as recorded, Block 5, Sea Side Park 

Subdivision, as explained in the memorandum from the Public Works Director dated February 

21, 2013. 

 

Mr. Forbes stated this is a low lying area that will be used for stormwater retention. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, and Mayor 

                        Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(c) Authorize the Execution of Closing Documents to Finalize Purchase of Real Property.  (Lots 

15 and 16, Block 9, Pine Grove Unit 2 Subdivision) 

 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the Mayor 

and City Manager to execute the closing documents to finalize, at the agreed purchase price 

and total estimated City closing costs, the City purchase of the real property described as Lots 

15 and 16, Block 9, Pine Grove Unit Number 2 Subdivision, as explained in the memorandum 

from the Public Works Director dated February 21, 2013. 

 

Mr. Forbes stated this is a low lying area that will be used to create stormwater retention in the 

future.  Photos of the property located at 1318 North 6th Avenue were displayed.  Mr. Forbes 

stated the City plans to raize/demo the vacant house as soon as possible and let it be a grassy 

area.  Mr. Forbes stated that it will cost approximately $6,000 to $10,000 to demo the house.  

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor 

                        Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(d) Approval of Lease Agreement for Chris Larson d/b/a Big Fish Roofing Company to Lease 

Property at the Jacksonville Beach Industrial Park. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 8 of 9 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the City 

Manager and Mayor to execute a lease agreement with Chris Larson d/b/a Big Fish Roofing to 

lease property at the Industrial Park. 

 

Mr. Forbes had displayed photographs of the area.  This is a five year lease, beginning March 

1, 2013, with an option to renew for one year terms. The annual amount for leasing the 

property is $8,338.51, or $694.88 per month. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, and Mayor 

                              Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

(a) Resolution No. 1912-2013 

 

Mayor Latham requested that Resolution No. 1912-2013, be read by title; whereupon Ms. Pyatte 

read the following: 

 

“A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE OPERATING BUDGET OF THE CITY 

OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA FOR THE FISCAL PERIOD 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2012, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013.” 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Resolution No. 

1912-2013, adopting the mid-year budget adjustment 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes – Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

ORDINANCES 

 

(a) Ordinance No. 2013-8024 – SECOND READING 

 

Mayor Latham requested that Ordinance No. 2013-8024, be read by title; whereupon Ms. Pyatte 

read the following: 

 

“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32, UTILITIES, OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; 

PROVIDING THE METHOD OF CALCULATING THE MAXIMUM 

ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION MADE BY THE ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND 

TO THE GENERAL FUND TO BE INCLUDED IN THE CITY’S ANNUAL 

OPERATING BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ALL 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.” 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Ordinance No. 2013-

8024, establishing an annual maximum transfer from the electric utility to the general fund 

and prescribing the methodology for calculating the transfer amount. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, March 4, 2013 
 

 

RC 130304min  Page 9 of 9 

Roll call vote: Ayes – Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business coming before the Council, Mayor Latham adjourned the meeting at 8:50 

p.m. 

 

Submitted by: Nancy J. Pyatte  

 Assistant City Clerk 

 

   Approval: 

 

 

 

       

   William C. Latham, Mayor 

 

 

   Date:  March 18, 2013  



Council Orientation Tour 
Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 3:00 PM - 5:30 PM 

 

 

TOUR 130306 min Page 1 of 2 

The Recreation & Parks Department conducted an orientation tour with four City Council 
members on Wednesday March 6, 2013.  The City Council members attending including: Mayor 
Charlie Latham, City Council members Chris Hoffman, Phil Vogelsang, and Keith Doherty. 
 
 The tour started at the Ocean Rescue Station and discussion of Ocean Rescue duties.  The 

lieutenants Nick Wellington, Taylor Anderson, and Tim Klein, discussed the American Red 
Cross Corp and how they train the annual guards that will staff for the upcoming season.  The 
lieutenants also discussed the difference between the City and ARC and how the Corp staffs 
ocean rescue on Sunday’s and Holidays.  The staff reviewed the equipment and vehicles that 
are used to perform rescues and patrols.   Then the staff performed a mock ocean rescue and 
described to the Mayor and City Council the details of the rescue and the procedures that 
were being followed.  

 
 The next stop on the tour was at Carver Center.  The Carver Center supervisor Latoya 

Thomas conducted the tour of the center.  Ms. Thomas explained the various programs that 
are conducted at the center which includes Young Men of Carver and Girls with Goals.  The 
tour included the various rooms throughout the center including the computer lab, classroom 
area, kitchen and play area.  Ms. Thomas also explained the various volunteer groups that 
support the programs at the Center.  Some of these include: Palms Presbyterian, St. Andrews, 
and Ocean City church.  Mr. Meadors explained the funding for the center is supported by a 
Community Development Block Grant.  This grant includes funding for the salaries of the 
center staff, a police officer, and utility bill assistance program. 

  
 The next stop on the tour was at Recreation & Parks building and viewing of a power point 

presentation on the various divisions of the department.  
 
 The last stop on the tour was the Huguenot Tennis Center.  The tennis professional Jim 

Watford discussed the various programs provided at the tennis center.  Mr. Meadors 
reviewed ideas that are being prepared to change the rates charged at Huguenot Tennis 
Center.  These rates will include an increase in the base membership fees, increase in the 
daily fee, and a new roster fee for the league players.   In addition the contract with tennis 
professional will be changed to include a modification of the fee paid to the City for revenue 
from the sale of pro shop merchandise and lessons.  

 
 Driving back to City Hall, the City Manager discussed his ideas on how to proceed with the 

downtown paid parking program. 



Minutes of Council Orientation Tour 
on Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. 
 
 

 
TOUR 130306 min   Page 2 of 2 

Submitted by: Gary Meadors  
  Recreation & Parks Director  
                                                             
 
   Approved: 

  
 

    

William C. Latham, Mayor 
   
  Date:     
 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
Public Safety and Vagrancy 

Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

WS 130306 min Page 1 of 4 

 
Mayor Charlie Latham called the workshop to order at 6:32 PM. 
 
The following City Council members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Charlie Latham  Steve Hartkemeyer      
Mayor Pro-Tem Tom Taylor  Phil Vogelsang 
Keith Doherty    Jeanell Wilson 
 
Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley, Commander 
Steve Corbitt, and Commander Gene Paul Smith. 
 
Purpose of Workshop 
 
The purpose of the workshop is to discuss public safety and vagrancy in the downtown area. 
 
Discussion 
 
Mayor Latham gave a brief introduction.  He stated that he wanted to gather as a community to 
discuss problems.  Mayor Latham acknowledged the department directors who were in 
attendance. 
 
Mayor Latham stated that public safety is one of the top five priorities of the City Council.  He 
said another top priority is building community.  Mayor Latham stated that the workshop was set 
up to exchange information and share ideas.  Mayor Latham acknowledged that representatives 
from BEAM, Mission House, the Sulzbacher Center, Jacksonville Beach Police, and the 
Chamber of Commerce were in attendance.  He stated that each group will address the audience.  
Following the groups, there will be an open mic period for questions and discussion.  Mayor 
Latham asked the audience to try to mix up the groups so each table has a variety of participants.  
He asked everyone to take five minutes to introduce themselves at whatever table they were 
seated.  Mayor Latham asked that everyone be respectful and hear all voices and opinions.  He 
stated that homelessness is a condition that needs a solution.  In contrast, vagrancy is a choice to 
live that way.   Mayor Latham continued saying everyone has rights and we need to find a way to 
work together. 
 
Mayor Latham read a memo from the City Manager (copy attached).  The memo references three 
strategies adopted by the City to assist with the problem: the Community Services Center, the 
downtown community policing team, and the HOPE program.  Mayor Latham stated the City 
also needs to enforce the laws. 
 
 
 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
held on Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
WS 130306 min   Page 2 of 4 

BEAM 
 
Susan King from BEAM addressed the audience.  Ms. King stated that BEAM is a private 
agency that provides assistance to families to stay in their homes.  She stated they serve a five 
zip code area.  They provide rent and utility assistance.  BEAM also operates a food pantry.  
Their employees and volunteers provide counsel with issues as people go through their 
organization. In addition, they assist people with food stamp assistance.  They try to keep 
families in homes to prevent homelessness.  Ms. King answered several questions from the 
audience.  BEAM is a faith based organization.  They receive funding through grants, which 
account for approximately 20% of their funding, individual donors, and corporate donations.  
Ms. King stated BEAM provided $120,000 in utility assistance and $100,000 in rental assistance.  
She stated it has been extremely difficult for the working poor.  They have low paying jobs while 
costs have gone up.  If needed, BEAM refers people to a financial mentoring program. 
 
Mission House 
 
Lori Anderson from Mission House addressed the audience.  Ms. Anderson stated that a lot of 
people don’t know what Mission House does.  Mission House is not a soup kitchen any more.  
Mission House was started in 1997.  They used to be housed with BEAM until BEAM moved to 
the Community Services Center.  Mission House is a faith based organization.  It is the only 
homeless day facility.  Their number one goal is to get people off the street and into housing.  
Last year they got 66 people into housing.  The year before, it was 44.  They provide active case 
management.  Clients who come in more than a couple times then have to see a case manager.  
They provide a clinic twice a week.  Mission House serves all of Duval County at their clinic.  
They have a veteran’s representative every other week.  Everything is free in the clinic.  They 
had a $30,000 medicine bill last year.  Every doctor, nurse and intake person is a volunteer.  
They provide a doctor for mental health and psychologists.  80-90% of their clients do not have 
identification.  They assist clients with obtaining IDs.  There is no overnight shelter at the beach.  
They provide two meals per day Monday through Friday.  All their teams are volunteers.  Clients 
can take a shower and are given a new set of clothes.  Mission House has an agreement with 
Goodwill to provide vouchers for free clothing.  They help clients look for jobs.  Mission House 
has standards for safety and requires clients to follow two rules or be banned – no weapons, 
drugs or alcohol; and no physical violence.  Mission House gives clients the tools to make their 
life better.  They try to get people off the streets.  Mission House has seven paid employees and 
400 volunteers.  Number one funding source is individuals.  They also receive funding from 
churches, civic and corporations.  They served 2,200 meals in January 2013.  Statistics on the 
number of homeless at the beach is not exact.  The number of the last count had 76, but the year 
before had 276.  Ms. Anderson answered questions from the audience. 
 
 
 
 
Sulzbacher Center 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
held on Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
WS 130306 min   Page 3 of 4 

 
Dr. Richard Christensen, Director of Mental Health Services for the Sulzbacher Center, 
addressed the audience.  Dr. Christensen stated HOPE teams were created, one in downtown 
Jacksonville and one at the beach, in an attempt to engage people outside of care.  He said the 
homeless at the beach are unsheltered and often resistant to services.  The Sulzbacher Center was 
created in 1995 as a 350 bed shelter and provides primary care, mental, and addiction services.  
The HOPE team has made 3,300 contacts at the beach.  Clients can stay at the shelter as long as 
they are working towards getting out of homelessness.  Dr. Christensen answered questions from 
the audience.  He stated that the HOPE team is out every day, usually twice a day. 
 
Chamber of Commerce 
 
Sonny Bikha, who owns several hotels at the beach, spoke on behalf of the Chamber of 
Commerce.  Mr. Bikha stated that the homeless present a safety issue to staff and visitors to the 
City, panhandling, making remarks, urinating and sleeping on the boardwalk.  He said if we 
don’t find a solution, it will cost jobs. 
 
Mayor Latham recognized Officer Dan Watts, who works a lot with the homeless at the beach.  
He also recognized the Citizen Police Academy program and explained that a person can learn a 
lot about what the police department does.  Mayor Latham encouraged the audience to 
participate in the program and noted another class will be starting soon. 
 
Interim Police Chief Pat Dooley stated the police can make arrests but don’t control how long 
they are incarcerated.  Most of the arrests are for misdemeanors and the person is in and out 
quickly.  Chief Dooley explained the downtown CAPE program has four full time officers.  He 
stated Officer Watts was personally involved in housing 33 people last year.  Chief Dooley said 
people living on the street also become victims.  He said the police try to connect with people 
who want help getting the help they need.  They enforce the rights of citizens and visitors.  When 
people are found sleeping on the beach, they are first given a warning and a contact card.  The 
beach is checked every night.  A photo is taken on the 2nd and 3rd time.  It is an ongoing process.  
Chief Dooley said they need the help of the public to call when they see violations of the law.  
He outlined a program that they are working on to have persons with repeat arrests brought 
before a judge in the hope it would force the individual into a treatment program.  Chief Dooley 
explained that property owners can sign a Trespass Agreement which allows the police to go on 
their property and automatically arrest any trespassers after a one time warning. Chief Dooley 
answered questions from the audience.  He stated that 20% of the annual arrests involve the 
homeless.  Commander Steve Corbitt went over a breakdown of the cost of each arrest and 
estimated the average cost in 2011 at $15,578.46.  In 2012, the estimate is $14,000. 
 
Mayor Latham stated that there would not be any solutions tonight.  He then opened it up to the 
audience for any questions or comments.   
 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
held on Wednesday, March 6, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
WS 130306 min   Page 4 of 4 

Mayor Latham said the next step is to do additional research.  He will bring this issue before the 
City Council.  Mayor Latham stated this was a very informative meeting and thanked those who 
attended the workshop. 
 
The workshop was adjourned at 8:46 PM. 
 
 
Submitted by: Sheri Gosselin  
  Assistant to the City Manager  
                                                             
 
   Approved: 

  
 

    

William C. Latham, Mayor 
   
  Date:   March 18, 2013  
 














































































































































	CC 130318 agn cmm
	130225 CC Workshop Minutes - Paid Parking with watermark
	CC 1300304 Briefing min cmm
	RC 130304 min njp with watermark
	130306 Council Orientation Tour
	130306 CC Workshop Minutes - Downtown Crime and Vagrancy with watermark
	1
	2
	Financial Reports
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8a
	8b

